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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30,  June 30, 

     2024      2023      2024      2023
Revenues                 

Casino $ 54,685 $ 45,359 $ 106,358 $ 81,346
Food and beverage   10,403   8,673   20,172   16,333
Hotel   3,742   2,348   6,594   4,492
Other operations, including contracted sports wagering   4,662   3,002   10,292   7,317

  73,492   59,382   143,416   109,488
Operating costs and expenses           

Casino   20,719   16,990   41,294   30,334
Food and beverage   10,714   9,030   20,474   16,485
Hotel   2,383   1,228   4,546   2,447
Other operations   990   705   1,781   1,187
Selling, general and administrative   25,285   21,577   50,220   39,806
Project development costs   3   17   3   24
Preopening costs 757 1,086 2,420 11,583
Depreciation and amortization   10,326   8,155   20,951   14,014
Loss on disposal of assets   —   — 18   —

  71,177   58,788   141,707   115,880
Operating income (loss)   2,315   594   1,709   (6,392)
Other (expense) income  

Interest expense, net (11,023) (5,633) (21,273) (10,452)
Gain on insurance settlement — — — 355

  (11,023) (5,633) (21,273) (10,097)
Loss before income taxes   (8,708)   (5,039)   (19,564)   (16,489)
Income tax (benefit) provision (79) 561 337 526
Net loss $ (8,629) $ (5,600) $ (19,901) $ (17,015)

Basic loss per share $ (0.25) $ (0.16) $ (0.57) $ (0.49)
Diluted loss per share $ (0.25) $ (0.16) $ (0.57) $ (0.49)

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share data)

June 30,  December 31, 
     2024      2023

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and equivalents $ 31,061 $ 36,155
Restricted cash 13,636 37,639
Accounts receivable, net of provision for credit losses of $1,582 and $1,189   5,512   5,332
Inventories   2,015   1,839
Prepaid expenses and other   4,312   3,674

  56,536   84,639

Property and equipment, net   460,724   457,907
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 43,074 44,704
Finance lease right-of-use assets, net 1,647 2,318
Goodwill   21,286   21,286
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $377 and $8,140   89,335   76,271
Deposits and other   1,316   1,332

$ 673,918 $ 688,457
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 12,009 $ 12,794
Income taxes payable — 489
Construction payable 11,533 20,667
Accrued payroll and related   7,694   4,097
Accrued interest 14,055 14,248
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities   18,631   19,779
Current portion of operating lease obligations 4,298 4,784
Current portion of finance lease obligations 1,768 1,694

  69,988 78,552

Operating lease obligations, net of current portion   39,219   40,248
Finance lease obligations, net of current portion 1,801 2,705
Other long-term liabilities, net of current portion 29,835 16,075
Long-term debt, net   466,638   465,153
Deferred income taxes, net   2,021   1,684
Contract liabilities, net of current portion 4,962 6,192

  614,464   610,609
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)          
Stockholders’ equity          

Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 35,302,549 and
35,302,549 shares issued and 34,799,896 and 34,590,150 shares outstanding   4   4
Additional paid-in capital   114,580   113,329
Treasury stock, 502,653 and 712,399 common shares   (613)   (869)
Accumulated deficit   (54,517)   (34,616)

  59,454   77,848
$ 673,918 $ 688,457

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-in Treasury Stock Accumulated Stockholders’

Shares Dollars Capital Shares Dollars   Deficit Equity
Balance, January 1, 2024 35,302 $ 4 $ 113,329 712 $ (869) $ (34,616) $ 77,848

Stock-based compensation — — 709 — — —   709
Net loss — — — — — (11,272)   (11,272)

Balance, March 31, 2024 35,302 4 114,038 712 (869) (45,888) 67,285
Options exercised and
restricted stocks vested — — (198) (209) 256 — 58
Stock-based compensation — — 740 — — — 740
Net loss — — — — — (8,629) (8,629)

Balance, June 30, 2024 35,302 $ 4 $ 114,580 503 $ (613) $ (54,517) $ 59,454

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-in Treasury Stock Accumulated Stockholders’

Shares Dollars Capital Shares Dollars   Deficit Equity
Balance, January 1, 2023 35,302 $ 4 $ 110,590 895 $ (1,091) $ (9,712) $ 99,791

Options exercised — — 12 (4) 5 — 17
Stock-based compensation — — 748 — — — 748
Net loss — — — — — (11,415) (11,415)

Balance, March 31, 2023 35,302 4 111,350 891 (1,086) (21,127) 89,141
Options exercised and
restricted stocks vested — — (65) (166) 202 — 137
Stock-based compensation — — 655 — — — 655
Net loss — — — — — (5,600) (5,600)

Balance, June 30, 2023 35,302 $ 4 $ 111,940 725 $ (884) $ (26,727) $ 84,333

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30, 

     2024      2023
Cash flows from operating activities:         
Net loss $ (19,901) $ (17,015)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:  

Depreciation and amortization   20,951   14,014
Amortization of debt issuance costs, discounts and premiums   1,485   1,291
Non-cash change in ROU operating lease assets 1,631 1,997
Stock-based compensation   1,449   1,403
Loss on disposal of assets   18   —
Provision for (recovery of) credit losses 538 (33)
Gain on insurance settlement — (355)
Other operating activities — 773
Deferred income taxes   337   526
Increases and decreases in operating assets and liabilities:  

Accounts receivable   (718)   (2,021)
Prepaid expenses, inventories and other   (814)   (133)
Income taxes payable (489) —
Operating lease liabilities (1,516) (1,933)
Contract liabilities (4,060) 18
Accounts payable and other liabilities   6,812   3,170

Net cash provided by operating activities   5,723   1,702
Cash flows from investing activities:  
Capital expenditures   (33,939)   (89,309)
Proceeds from insurance settlement related to property damage — 355
Acquisition of intangible assets (1) (50,250)
Other   15   —

Net cash used in investing activities   (33,925)   (139,204)
Cash flows from financing activities:  
Proceeds from Senior Secured Notes due 2028 borrowings   —   40,000
Payment of debt discount and issuance costs   —   (6,490)
Borrowings under revolving credit facility 3,000 36,000
Repayment of revolving credit facility borrowings (3,000) (9,000)
Repayment of finance lease obligations (830) (759)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   58   154
Other (123) —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (895)   59,905

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   (29,097)   (77,597)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period   73,794   191,176
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 44,697 $ 113,579

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



Table of Contents

7

FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited) – (Continued)
(In thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30, 

2024      2023
Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 19,599 $ 10,721
Cash paid for income taxes 489 —

Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:          
Payables and accruals incurred for capital expenditures $ 8,344 $ 25,949
Accrued liability related to asset acquisition 13,090 —
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities:

Operating leases — 30,178
Right-of-use asset and liability remeasurements:

Operating leases — 2,341
Financing leases — (207)

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

1. ORGANIZATION

Organization. Formed as a Delaware corporation in 1987, Full House Resorts, Inc. owns, leases, operates, develops, manages, and/or invests in
casinos and related hospitality and entertainment facilities. References in this document to “Full House,” the “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us”
refer to Full House Resorts, Inc. and its subsidiaries, except where stated or the context otherwise indicates.

The Company currently operates seven casinos: six on real estate that we own or lease and one located within a hotel owned by a third party. In
February 2023, we opened our temporary American Place facility, which we are permitted to operate until August 2027; we have begun the
design work for the permanent gaming resort facility that we plan to build on adjoining land. In December 2023, we began the phased opening of
our newest property, Chamonix Casino Hotel (“Chamonix”), located adjacent to our existing Bronco Billy’s Casino in Cripple Creek, Colorado.
Additionally, we benefit from seven permitted sports wagering “skins” – three in Colorado, three in Indiana, and one in Illinois.

For additional information about the Company’s segments, see Note 8.

The following table presents selected information concerning our segments:

Segments and Properties  Locations
Midwest & South
American Place* Waukegan, IL (northern suburb of Chicago)
Silver Slipper Casino and Hotel   Hancock County, MS (near New Orleans)
Rising Star Casino Resort   Rising Sun, IN (near Cincinnati)
West
Bronco Billy’s Casino and Chamonix Casino Hotel*   Cripple Creek, CO (near Colorado Springs)
Grand Lodge Casino
(leased and part of the Hyatt Regency Lake Tahoe Resort, Spa and Casino)   Incline Village, NV

(North Shore of Lake Tahoe)
Stockman’s Casino   Fallon, NV (one hour east of Reno)
Contracted Sports Wagering
One active sports wagering website (“skins”), plus two others that are currently idle Colorado
One active sports wagering website (“skins”), plus two others that are currently idle Indiana
One active sports wagering website (“skin”), commenced in August 2023 Illinois
__________
* The temporary American Place facility and Chamonix opened on February 17 and December 27, 2023, respectively.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation. As permitted by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), certain information and
footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America (“GAAP”) have been condensed or omitted. These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s 2023 annual consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company included herein reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring
adjustments) that are, in the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly the financial position and results of operations for the interim
periods presented. The results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of annualized results for an entire year.
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The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Full House and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fair Value and the Fair Value Input Hierarchy. Fair value measurements affect the Company’s accounting for net assets acquired in
acquisition transactions and certain financial assets and liabilities. Fair value measurements are also used in the Company’s periodic assessments
of long-lived tangible and intangible assets for possible impairment, including for property and equipment, goodwill, and other intangible assets.
Fair value is defined as the expected price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

GAAP categorizes the inputs used for fair value into a three-level hierarchy:

● Level 1: Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
● Level 2: Comparable inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for similar assets or liabilities in less active markets; and
● Level 3: Unobservable inputs which may include metrics that market participants would use to estimate values, such as revenue and

earnings multiples and relative rates of return.

Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments are affected by the duration of the instruments and other factors
used by market participants to estimate value. The carrying amounts for cash and equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, and accounts
payable approximate their estimated fair value because of the short durations of the instruments and inconsequential rates of interest.

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash. Cash equivalents include cash involved in operations and cash in excess of daily requirements that is
invested in highly liquid, short-term investments with initial maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Restricted cash balances consist of funds placed into an interest-bearing account to fund the completion of the Chamonix construction project, in
accordance with the Company’s debt covenants.

Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk. Accounts receivable consist primarily of casino, hotel, certain sports wagering contracts that pay us in
arrears, and other receivables. Accounts receivable are typically non-interest bearing, recorded initially at cost, and are carried net of an
appropriate reserve to approximate fair value. Loss reserves are estimated based on specific review of customer accounts including the
customers’ willingness and ability to pay and nature of collateral, if any, as well as historical collection experience and current and expected
economic and business conditions. Accounts are written off when management deems the account to be uncollectible and recoveries of accounts
previously written off are recorded when received.

(In thousands) June 30,  December 31, 
2024      2023

Casino $ 321 $ 343
Trade Accounts 3,059 3,479
Other Operations, excluding Contracted Sports Wagering 166 185
Contracted Sports Wagering 2,930 1,932
Other 618 582

7,094 6,521
Less:  Provision for credit losses (1,582) (1,189)

$ 5,512 $ 5,332
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The following table shows the movement in the provision for credit losses recognized for accounts receivable that occurred during the period:

(In thousands)
2024      2023

Balance at January 1 $ 1,189 $ 249
Current period provision for (recovery of) credit losses 538 (33)
Write-offs (145) —
Balance at June 30 $ 1,582 $ 216

At June 30, 2024, estimated loss reserves for the current year include an additional provision of $0.5 million in connection with two online
sports wagering agreements, which remain active in Colorado and Indiana. In July 2024, each of the Company’s respective subsidiaries entered
into amended agreements with the contracted party to settle such overdue receivables, which included settlement provisions for the outstanding
receivable balances (see Note 9).

Management regularly evaluates the adequacy of the Company’s recorded reserves. As of June  30,  2024, we believe that no significant
concentrations of credit risk existed for which a reserve had not already been recorded.

Other Intangible Assets. In March 2023, the Company paid $50.3 million to the Illinois Gaming Board (“IGB”) for required gaming license
fees to operate the temporary American Place facility, and upon its opening, the permanent facility. Management has deemed the gaming license
in Illinois as having an indefinite economic life, as such license is eligible for renewal every four years if all regulatory requirements are met.
There is an additional one-time reconciliation fee, based on interim gaming revenues, which is calculated three years after commencing
operations and paid over the ensuing six years. The minimum present value of this long-term obligation was determined as of June 30, 2024 to
be $28.0 million, which is accounted for as an increase in the cost basis for the gaming license in Illinois. See Note 6 for details.

The long-term obligation for the Company’s gaming license in Illinois consisted of the following, as discussed above:

(In thousands) June 30,  December 31, 
     2024      2023

IGB Reconciliation Fee* $ 39,525 $ 22,092
Less: Amount representing interest (11,530) (7,187)
Present value of IGB Reconciliation Fee $ 27,995 $ 14,905
__________
* Calculated based upon gaming revenues generated through June 2024. This one-time fee will be paid in six annual installments beginning in

February 2026.

Additionally, during the second quarter of 2024, the Company retired $7.8 million of fully amortized intangible assets, which consisted primarily
of acquired player loyalty programs. This resulted in net accumulated amortization of $0.4 million at June 30, 2024, compared to $8.1 million at
December 31, 2023.

Revenue Recognition:

Accrued Club Points and Customer Loyalty Programs: Operating Revenues and Related Costs and Expenses. The Company’s revenues
consist primarily of casino gaming, food and beverage, hotel, and other revenues (such as sports wagering, golf, RV park operations, and
entertainment). The majority of the Company’s revenues are derived from casino gaming, principally slot machines.

The transaction price for a casino wager is the difference between gaming wins and losses, not the total amount wagered. As such wagers have
similar characteristics, the Company accounts for its gaming transactions on a portfolio basis by recognizing net win per gaming day versus on
an individual basis.
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The Company sometimes provides discretionary complimentary goods and services (“discretionary comps”). For these types of transactions, the
Company allocates revenue to the department providing the complimentary goods or services based upon its estimated standalone selling price,
offset by a reduction in casino revenues.

Many of the Company’s casino customers choose to earn points under its customer loyalty programs. As points are accrued, the Company defers
a portion of its casino revenue based on the estimated standalone value of loyalty points being earned by the customer. The standalone value of
loyalty points is derived from the retail value of food, beverages, hotel rooms, and other goods or services for which such points may be
redeemed. A liability related to these customer loyalty points is recorded, net of estimated breakage and other factors, until the customer redeems
these points for various loyalty program benefits, primarily for “free casino play,” complimentary dining, or hotel stays, among others,
depending on each property’s specific offers. Upon redemption, the related revenue is recognized at retail value within the department providing
the goods or services. Unredeemed points are forfeited if the customer becomes and remains inactive for a specified period of time. Such
liabilities were approximately $0.9  million at June  30,  2024 and $0.8  million at December  31,  2023, and these amounts are included in
“other accrued expenses and current liabilities” on the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue for food and beverage, hotel, and other revenue transactions, as described in “Other Revenues” below, includes the retail value of
(i) discretionary comps and (ii) comps provided in return for redemption of loyalty points. Additionally, the Company may collect deposits in
advance for future hotel reservations or entertainment, among other services, which represent obligations of the Company until the service is
provided to the customer.

Deferred Revenues: Market Access Fees from Sports Wagering Agreements. The Company entered into several agreements with various
unaffiliated companies allowing for online sports wagering within Indiana, Colorado and Illinois, as well as on-site sports wagering at American
Place (the “Sports Agreements”). As part of these long-term Sports Agreements, the Company received one-time “market access” fees, which are
recorded as long-term liabilities and then recognized as revenue ratably over the initial contract terms (or as accelerated due to early
termination), beginning with the earlier of operations commencement or contractual commencement. In the third quarter of 2023, a contracted
party ceased online operations in Indiana and Colorado, thus creating one available skin in each state. Another contracted party ceased online
operations in Colorado during the second quarter of 2024, resulting in $0.9 million of accelerated revenue from market access fees.

Indiana. Under the Company’s one active Sports Agreement in Indiana that commenced in December 2021, we receive a percentage of
revenues (as defined), subject to an annualized minimum amount. Additionally, a $1.0 million market access fee, received upon signing of the
agreement, is being amortized over the initial 10-year term of the agreement. During the third quarter of 2024, the agreement was amended to
settle overdue payments and to reduce future annual amounts for the remainder of the initial term through November 2031, as well as for any
renewal periods (see Note 9). The Company also has two idle skins, which the Company could operate itself or allow third-party operators to
utilize. There is no certainty that the Company will be able to enter into agreements with other third-party operators or successfully operate the
skins itself.

Colorado. Similarly in Colorado, under the Company’s one active Sports Agreement that commenced in June  2020, we receive a
percentage of revenues (as defined), subject to an annualized minimum amount. Additionally, a $1.0 million market access fee, received upon
signing of the agreement, is being amortized over the initial 10-year term of the agreement. During the third quarter of 2024, the agreement was
amended to settle overdue payments and to reduce future annual amounts for the remainder of the initial term through June 2030, as well as for
any renewal periods (see Note 9). The Company also has two idle skins, which the Company could operate itself or allow third-party operators
to utilize. There is no certainty that the Company will be able to enter into agreements with other third-party operators or successfully operate the
skins itself.

Illinois. Under the Company’s Sports Agreement in Illinois, we receive a percentage of revenues (as defined), subject to a minimum of
$5.0 million per year. A market access fee of $5.0 million is being amortized over the eight-year term of the Sports Agreement, which began its
contractual term in August 2023.

In addition to the market access fees, deferred revenue includes annual prepayments of contracted revenue. With the July 2024 amendment of
two Sports Agreements, the prepayment of contracted revenue is now required in all of the Company’s active Sports Agreements.
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Deferred revenues consisted of the following, as discussed above:

(In thousands) June 30,  December 31, 
     Balance Sheet Location 2024      2023

Deferred revenue, current Other accrued expenses and current liabilities $ 3,346 $ 6,175
Deferred revenue, net of current portion Contract liabilities, net of current portion 4,962 6,192

$ 8,308 $ 12,367

Other Revenues. The transaction price of rooms, food and beverage, and retail contracts is the net amount collected from the customer for such
goods and services. The transaction price for such contracts is recorded as revenue when the good or service is transferred to the customer over
their stay at the hotel or when the delivery is made for the food, beverage, retail and other contracts. Sales and usage-based taxes are excluded
from revenues.

Revenue by Source. The Company presents earned revenue as disaggregated by the type or nature of the good or service (casino, food and
beverage, hotel, and other operations comprised mainly of retail, golf, entertainment, and contracted sports wagering) and by relevant geographic
region within Note 8.

Income Taxes. For interim income tax reporting for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company estimates its annual effective
tax rate and applies it to its year-to-date pretax income or loss.

Reclassifications. The Company made certain minor financial statement presentation reclassifications to prior-period amounts to conform to the
current-period presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported results of operations or financial position.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share. Earnings (loss) per share is net income (loss) applicable to common stock divided by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional dilutive effects for all potentially-dilutive
securities, including share-based awards outstanding under the Company’s stock compensation plan, using the treasury stock method.

Leases. The Company determines if a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception or modification of the agreement. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if there are identified assets and the right to control the use of an identified asset is conveyed for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control over the use of the identified asset means that the lessee has both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from the use of the asset and the right to direct the use of the asset.

For material leases with terms greater than a year, the Company records right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet, as
measured on a discounted basis. For finance leases, the Company recognizes interest expense associated with the lease liability, as well as
depreciation (or amortization) expense associated with the ROU asset, depending on whether those ROU assets are expected to transfer to the
Company upon lease expiration. If ownership of a finance lease ROU asset is expected to transfer to the Company upon lease expiration, then it
is included with the Company’s property and equipment; other qualifying finance lease ROU assets, based on other classifying criteria under
Accounting Standards Codification 842 (“ASC  842”), are disclosed separately as “Finance Lease Right-of-Use Assets, Net.” For operating
leases, the Company recognizes straight-line rent expense.

The Company does not recognize ROU assets or lease liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less. However, costs related to short-term
leases with terms greater than one month, which the Company deems material, are disclosed as a component of lease expenses when applicable.
Additionally, the Company accounts for new and existing leases containing both lease and non-lease components (“embedded leases”) together
as a single lease component by asset class for gaming-related equipment; therefore, the Company does not allocate contract consideration to the
separate lease and non-lease components based on their relative standalone prices.
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Finance and operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized based on the present value of future minimum lease payments over the
expected lease term at commencement, plus any qualifying initial direct costs paid prior to commencement for ROU assets. As the implicit rate
is not determinable in most of the Company’s leases, management uses the Company’s incremental borrowing rate as estimated by third-party
valuation specialists in determining the present value of future payments based on the information available at the commencement date and/or
modification date. The expected lease terms include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will
exercise such options. Lease expense for minimum lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the expected lease term for
operating leases. For finance leases, the ROU asset depreciates/amortizes on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or useful life
of the ROU asset as applicable, and the lease liability accretes interest based on the interest method using the discount rate determined at lease
commencement.

Preopening costs. Preopening costs are related to the preopening phases of new ventures, in accordance with accounting standards regarding
start-up activities, and are expensed as incurred. These costs consist of payroll, advertising, outside services, organizational costs and other
expenses directly related to both the Chamonix and American Place developments.

Debt Issuance Costs and Debt Discounts/Premiums. Debt issuance costs and debt discounts/premiums incurred in connection with the
issuance of debt have been included as a component of the carrying amount of debt, and are amortized/accreted over the contractual term of the
debt to interest expense, using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. When its existing debt agreements are
determined to have been modified, the Company amortizes/accretes such costs to interest expense using the effective interest method over the
terms of the modified debt agreement.

Accounting Pronouncements:

ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes, Topic 740, Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“Update 2023-09”). In December 2023, the FASB issued
Update 2023-09 to improve income tax disclosure requirements, primarily related to rate reconciliations and income taxes paid. Update 2023-09
is effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company
is evaluating the impact of the adoption of Update 2023-09 to the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting, Topic 280, Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (“Update 2023-07”). In November 2023, the
FASB issued Update 2023-07 to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant
segment expenses. Update 2023-07 is to be applied retrospectively and is effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2023, and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company is evaluating the
impact of the adoption of Update 2023-07 on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

The Company believes that there are no other recently-issued accounting standards not yet effective that are currently likely to have a material
impact on its financial statements.

3. LEASES

The Company has no material leases in which it is the lessor. As lessee, the Company has finance leases for a hotel and certain equipment, as
well as operating leases for land, casino and office space, equipment, and buildings. The Company’s remaining lease terms, including extensions,
range from one month to approximately 98 years. The Company’s lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or
material restrictive covenants, but the land leases at Silver Slipper and American Place do include contingent rent, as further discussed below.



Table of Contents

14

Operating Leases

Waukegan Ground Lease through February 2122 and Option to Purchase. In January 2023, the Company’s subsidiary, FHR-Illinois, LLC,
entered into a 99-year ground lease (the “Ground Lease”) for approximately 32  acres of land (the “City-Owned Parcel”) with the City of
Waukegan in Illinois (the “City”). The ground lease commenced concurrently with the opening of American Place on February 17, 2023. The
City-Owned Parcel and an adjacent 10-acre parcel owned by the Company comprise the location of American Place, including its temporary
facility. Annual rent under the Ground Lease is the greater of (i) $3.0 million (the “Annual Guaranteed Minimum Rent”), or (ii) 2.5% of gross
gaming revenue (as defined in the lease) generated by American Place.

The Company has the right to purchase the City-Owned Parcel at any time during the term of the Ground Lease for $30 million. If it does so
prior to the opening of the permanent American Place facility, then it must continue to pay rent due to the City under the Ground Lease until the
permanent casino is open.

Silver Slipper Casino Land Lease through April 2058 and Option to Purchase. In 2004, the Company’s subsidiary, Silver Slipper Casino
Venture, LLC, entered into a land lease for approximately 31 acres of marshlands and a seven-acre parcel on which the Silver Slipper Casino and
Hotel is situated. Annual minimum rent is $0.9  million throughout the lease term until 2058, plus contingent rents of 3% of gross gaming
revenue (as defined in the lease) in excess of $3.65 million per month. Rent paid through the first half of 2024, including contingent rent, was
$0.8 million.

Through October 1, 2027, the Company may buy out the lease for $15.5 million, plus a seller-retained interest in Silver Slipper Casino and
Hotel’s operations of 3% of net income (as defined) for 10 years following the purchase date.

Bronco Billy’s / Chamonix Lease through January 2035 and Option to Purchase. The Company’s subsidiary, FHR-Colorado LLC, leases
certain parcels, including a portion of the hotel and casino, under a long-term lease. The lease term includes six renewal options in three-year
increments to 2035. The Company exercised its fourth renewal option to extend the lease term through January 2029, with current annual lease
payments of $0.4 million. Annual minimum rent will increase to $0.5 million starting in February 2026 with adjustments on each anniversary
thereafter, based on the consumer price index. The lease contains a $7.6 million purchase option exercisable at any time during the lease term, or
as extended, and a right of first refusal on any sale of the property.

The Company’s related ROU asset and liability balances on its balance sheet factor in all renewal terms through January 2035, as the Company
is deemed likely to exercise each renewal unless it exercises its purchase buyout right.

Grand Lodge Casino Lease through December  2024. The Company’s subsidiary, Gaming Entertainment (Nevada), LLC, has a lease (the
“Hyatt Lease”) with Incline Hotel, LLC, the owner of the Hyatt Regency Lake Tahoe Resort (“Hyatt Lake Tahoe”), to operate the Grand Lodge
Casino. It is collateralized by the Company’s interests under the lease and property (as defined in the lease) and is subordinate to the liens of the
Notes (see Note  4). The lessor has an option to purchase the Company’s leasehold interest and related operating assets of the Grand Lodge
Casino at any time prior to lease expiration, subject to assumption of applicable liabilities. The option price is an amount equal to the Grand
Lodge Casino’s positive working capital, plus Grand Lodge Casino’s earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”) for the 12-month period preceding the acquisition (or pro-rated if less than 12 months remain on the lease), plus the fair market
value of the Grand Lodge Casino’s personal property.

The current annual rent of $2.0 million is applicable through December 2024. In July 2024, the lease was further amended to extend the current
term through December 31, 2034 and, additionally, permits the lessor to terminate the lease early with six  months’ notice for a significant
renovation of the property (see Note 9). Accordingly, the Company will remeasure this lease’s related ROU asset and liability balances on its
balance sheet upon the effective date of the amendment.

Corporate Office Lease through January 2025. The Company leases 4,479 square feet of office space in Las Vegas, Nevada. Annual rent is
approximately $0.2 million and the term of the office lease expires in January 2025.
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Finance Lease

Rising Star Casino Hotel Lease through October 2027 and Option to Purchase. The Company’s Indiana subsidiary, Gaming Entertainment
(Indiana) LLC, leases a 104-guestroom hotel at Rising Star Casino Resort. At any time during the lease term, the Company has the option to
purchase the hotel, and approximately 3.01 acres of land on which it resides, at a price based upon the hotel’s original cost of $7.7 million,
reduced by the cumulative principal payments made by the Company during the lease term. At June 30, 2024, such potential purchase price was
$2.0 million. Upon expiration of the lease term in October 2027, (i)  the landlord has the right to sell the hotel to the Company, and (ii)  the
Company has the option to purchase the hotel. In either case, the purchase price is $1 plus closing costs.

The components of lease expenses are as follows:

(In thousands)           Three Months Ended      Six Months Ended
Classification within June 30,  June 30, 

Lease Costs Statement of Operations 2024   2023 2024   2023
Operating leases:      

Fixed/base rent   Selling, General and Administrative Expenses $ 1,964 $ 2,170 $ 3,927 $ 3,962
Short-term payments Selling, General and Administrative Expenses — — — 22
Variable payments   Selling, General and Administrative Expenses   316   349   579   654

Finance leases:  
Amortization of leased assets   Depreciation and Amortization   374   348   749   701
Interest on lease liabilities   Interest Expense, Net   70   109   149   220

Total lease costs $ 2,724 $ 2,976 $ 5,404 $ 5,559

Leases recorded on the balance sheet consist of the following:

(In thousands)
June 30,  December 31, 

Leases      Balance Sheet Classification      2024 2023
Assets          
Operating lease assets     Operating Lease Right-of-Use Assets, Net     $ 43,074 $ 44,704
Finance lease assets   Property and Equipment, Net(1)   4,331   4,409
Finance lease assets Finance Lease Right-of-Use Assets, Net(2) 1,647 2,318
Total lease assets      $ 49,052 $ 51,431

Liabilities     
Current     

Operating   Current Portion of Operating Lease Obligations $ 4,298 $ 4,784
Finance   Current Portion of Finance Lease Obligations   1,768   1,694

Noncurrent     
Operating   Operating Lease Obligations, Net of Current Portion   39,219   40,248
Finance   Finance Lease Obligations, Net of Current Portion   1,801   2,705

Total lease liabilities      $ 47,086 $ 49,431
__________
(1) Finance lease assets are recorded net of accumulated amortization of $2.8  million for June  30,  2024 and $2.7  million for

December 31, 2023.
(2) These finance lease assets are recorded separately from Property and Equipment due to meeting qualifying classification criteria under

ASC 842, but ownership of such assets is not expected to transfer to the Company upon term expiration. Additionally, amortization of these
assets are expensed over the duration of the lease term or the assets’ estimated useful lives, whichever is earlier.
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Maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2024 are summarized as follows:

(In thousands)
     Operating      Finance

Years Ending December 31,  Leases Leases
2024 (excluding the six months ended June 30, 2024) $ 3,924 $ 978
2025   5,722   1,721
2026   4,864   652
2027   4,515   489
2028   4,515   —
Thereafter   312,066   —
Total future minimum lease payments   335,606   3,840

Less: Amount representing interest   (292,089)   (271)
Present value of lease liabilities   43,517   3,569

Less: Current lease obligations   (4,298)   (1,768)
Long-term lease obligations $ 39,219 $ 1,801

Other information related to lease term and discount rate is as follows:

June 30,  December 31, 
Lease Term and Discount Rate 2024 2023
Weighted-average remaining lease term        

Operating leases   69.8 years 67.9 years
Finance leases   2.3 years 2.8 years

Weighted-average discount rate  
Operating leases   10.92 % 10.91 %
Finance leases   7.19 % 7.46 %

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:

(In thousands)      Six Months Ended
June 30, 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities: 2024 2023
Operating cash flows for operating leases $ 3,812 $ 3,898
Operating cash flows for finance leases $ 149 $ 220
Financing cash flows for finance leases $ 830 $ 759

4. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

(In thousands) June 30,  December 31, 
2024 2023

Revolving Credit Facility due 2026 $ 27,000 $ 27,000
8.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2028 450,000 450,000
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts/premiums, net (10,362) (11,847)

$ 466,638 $ 465,153
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Senior Secured Notes due 2028. On February  12,  2021, the Company issued $310.0  million aggregate principal amount of 8.25% Senior
Secured Notes due 2028 (the “2028 Notes”) to refinance all of its prior notes and repurchase all of its outstanding warrants. Additionally,
$180 million of bond proceeds were initially placed into a construction reserve account to fund the construction of Chamonix, which was later
increased to $221 million in January 2022 to reflect an expansion of the project.

On February 7, 2022, the Company closed a private offering for an additional $100.0 million of Senior Secured Notes due 2028, which sold at a
price of 102.0% of such principal amount. Proceeds from this sale were used: (i)  to develop, equip and open the temporary American Place
facility, which the Company intends to operate while it designs and constructs its permanent facility, (ii) to pay the transaction fees and expenses
of such offer and sale, and (iii) for general corporate purposes. The additional notes from this sale were issued pursuant to the indenture, dated as
of February 12, 2021 (the “Original Indenture”), to which the Company issued the $310.0 million of 2028 Notes described above. In connection
with the issuance of the additional notes in February  2022, the Company and the subsidiary guarantors party to the Original Indenture also
entered into three Supplemental Indentures with Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee.

On February 21, 2023, the Company issued an additional $40.0 million of senior secured notes (the “Additional Notes”), thereby increasing the
outstanding borrowing under the 2028 Notes to $450.0 million (collectively, the “Notes”). Related to the issuance of the Additional Notes, the
Company further amended the indenture governing the Notes (collectively, the “Amended Indenture”) and amended its revolving credit facility.
Proceeds from the offering of the Additional Notes, net of related expenses and discounts, were approximately $34 million and were used: (i) to
open American Place, including the payment of related Illinois gaming license fees in March 2023, and (ii) for general corporate purposes. The
Additional Notes are essentially identical to the 2028 Notes, as they are treated as a single series of senior secured debt securities with the
2028  Notes and also as a single class for all purposes under the Amended Indenture, including, without limitation, waivers, amendments,
redemptions and offers to purchase.

The Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 8.25% per year and mature on February 15, 2028. There is no mandatory debt amortization prior to the
maturity date. Interest on the Notes is payable on February 15 and August 15 of each year.

The Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally (such guarantees, the “Guarantees”), by each of the Company’s restricted subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Guarantors”). The Notes and the Guarantees are the Company’s and the Guarantors’ general senior secured obligations,
subject to the terms of the Collateral Trust Agreement (as defined in the Amended Indenture), ranking senior in right of payment to all of the
Company’s and the Guarantors’ existing and future debt that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Notes and the Guarantees, if
any. The Notes and the Guarantees will rank equally in right of payment with all of the Company’s and the Guarantors’ existing and future senior
debt.

The Notes contain representations and warranties, covenants, and restrictions on dividends customary for notes of this type. Mandatory
prepayments, in whole or in part, of the Notes will be required upon the occurrence of certain events, including sales of certain assets (unless
such net proceeds are reinvested in the business), upon certain changes of control, or should the Company have certain unused funds in the
construction disbursement account following the completion of Chamonix.

The Company may redeem some or all of the Notes for cash at the following redemption prices:

Redemption Periods      Percentage Premium
February 15, 2024 to February 14, 2025   104.125 %
February 15, 2025 to February 14, 2026   102.063 %
February 15, 2026 and Thereafter 100.000 %
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Revolving Credit Facility due 2026. On February 7, 2022, the Company entered into a First Amendment to Credit Agreement with Capital
One, N.A. (“Capital One”), which, among other things, increased the borrowing capacity under the Company’s Credit Agreement, dated as of
March  31,  2021, from $15.0  million to $40.0  million. The amended $40.0  million senior secured revolving credit facility matures on
March 31, 2026 and includes a letter of credit sub-facility. The senior secured revolving credit facility may be used for working capital and other
ongoing general purposes.

On February  21,  2023, the Company entered into a Second Amendment to Credit Agreement with Capital One, which, among other things,
increased the amount of additional indebtedness permitted under the Company’s Credit Agreement from $25.0  million to $40.0  million
(collectively, the “Credit Facility”). Such amendment permitted the issuance of the Additional Notes, as described above.

The interest rate per annum applicable to loans under the Credit Facility is currently, at the Company’s option, either (i) SOFR plus a margin
equal to 3.00% and a Term SOFR adjustment of 0.15%, or (ii) a base rate plus a margin equal to 2.00%. Terms regarding the annual commitment
fee, customary letter of credit fees, and repayment date of March 31, 2026, remain unchanged from the original Credit Agreement, dated as of
March 31, 2021.

The Credit Facility is equally and ratably secured by the same assets and guarantees securing the Notes. The Company may make prepayments
of any amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility (without any reduction of the revolving commitments) in whole or in part at any time
without penalty.

The Credit Facility contains a number of negative covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, are substantially similar to the covenants
contained in the Notes. The Credit Facility also requires compliance with a financial covenant as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, such that
Adjusted EBITDA (as defined) for the trailing 12-month period must equal or exceed the utilized portion of the Credit Facility, if drawn. As of
June 30, 2024, the Company was in compliance with this financial covenant and $27.0 million of borrowings were outstanding under the Credit
Facility.

Fair Value of Long-Term Debt. The estimated fair value of the Notes was approximately $431.5 million for June 30, 2024 and $423.0 million
for December  31,  2023, which values were estimated using quoted market prices (Level  1 inputs). The fair  value of the Credit Facility
approximates its carrying amount, as it is revolving, variable rate debt, and is classified as a Level 2 measurement.

5. INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rates for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 were 0.9% and (1.7%), respectively, compared to
effective income tax rates of (11.1%) and (3.2%) for the corresponding prior-year periods. The changes in the effective income tax rates were
primarily due to the Company’s projections for pre-tax book income in 2024, the effects of tax amortization on indefinite-lived intangibles in
2024, valuation allowances, and certain permanent differences between tax and financial reporting purposes. The Company’s income tax
provision or benefit for interim periods has been determined using an estimate of its annual effective tax rate (“AETR”), adjusted for discrete
items.

The Company continues to assess the realizability of deferred tax assets (“DTAs”) and concluded that it has not met the “more-likely-than-not”
threshold. As of June  30,  2024, the Company continues to provide a valuation allowance against its DTAs that cannot be offset by existing
deferred tax liabilities. In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 740 (“ASC 740”), this assessment has taken into consideration the
jurisdictions in which these DTAs reside. The valuation allowance against DTAs has no effect on the actual taxes paid or owed by the Company.
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6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The Company is party to a number of pending legal proceedings related to matters that occurred in the normal course of business. Management
does not expect that the outcome of any such proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Contingent Gaming License Fees in Illinois

As required for its gaming licensure at American Place, the Company is required to make a “Reconciliation Payment” to the State of Illinois. The
Reconciliation Payment is calculated three years after the commencement of gaming operations in Illinois in an amount equal to 75% of the
adjusted gross receipts for the most lucrative trailing 12-month period of operations, offset by certain licensing fees paid by the Company in the
first quarter of 2023. The Reconciliation Payment is due in annual installments over a period of six years, beginning in 2026.

7. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The table below reconciles basic and diluted loss per share of common stock:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30,  June 30, 

     2024      2023      2024      2023
Numerator:                 
Net loss ─ basic $ (8,629) $ (5,600) $ (19,901) $ (17,015)
Net loss ─ diluted $ (8,629) $ (5,600) $ (19,901) $ (17,015)

Denominator:                    
Weighted-average common shares ─ basic   34,710   34,496   34,650   34,453
Potential dilution from share-based awards — — — —
Weighted-average common and common share equivalents ─ diluted   34,710   34,496   34,650   34,453
Anti-dilutive share-based awards excluded from the calculation of diluted loss
per share   4,408   4,079   4,310   3,962

8. SEGMENT REPORTING AND DISAGGREGATED REVENUE

The Company manages its reporting segments based on geographic regions within the United States and type of income. The Company’s
management views the regions where each of its casino resorts are located as reportable segments, in addition to its contracted sports wagering
segment. Reportable segments are aggregated based on geography, economic characteristics, types of customers, types of services and products
provided, the regulatory environments in which they operate, and their management and reporting structure.

The Company utilizes Adjusted Segment EBITDA as the measure of segment profitability in assessing performance and allocating resources at
the reportable segment level. Adjusted Segment EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest and other non-operating income (expense), taxes,
depreciation and amortization, preopening expenses, certain impairment charges, asset write-offs, recoveries, gain (loss) from asset disposals,
project development and acquisition costs, non-cash share-based compensation expense, and corporate-related costs and expenses that are not
allocated to each segment.
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The following tables present the Company’s segment information:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
Contracted

Sports
Midwest & South West Wagering Total

Revenues
Casino $ 43,051 $ 11,634 $ — $ 54,685
Food and beverage   8,683   1,720   —   10,403
Hotel   2,126   1,616   —   3,742
Other operations, including
contracted sports wagering   1,598   181   2,883   4,662

$ 55,458 $ 15,151 $ 2,883 $ 73,492

Adjusted Segment EBITDA $ 12,275 $ 865 $ 2,577 $ 15,717
Other operating costs and expenses:

Depreciation and amortization   (10,326)
Corporate expenses   (1,576)
Project development costs   (3)
Preopening costs (757)
Stock-based compensation (740)

Operating income   2,315
Other expense:

Interest expense, net   (11,023)
(11,023)

Loss before income taxes (8,708)
Income tax benefit   (79)

Net loss $ (8,629)



Table of Contents

21

(In thousands) Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
Contracted

Sports
Midwest & South West Wagering Total

Revenues
Casino $ 38,281 $ 7,078 $ — $ 45,359
Food and beverage   7,894   779   —   8,673
Hotel   2,229   119   —   2,348
Other operations,
including contracted sports wagering   1,507   113   1,382   3,002

$ 49,911 $ 8,089 $ 1,382 $ 59,382

Adjusted Segment EBITDA $ 9,391 $ 177 $ 1,361 $ 10,929
Other operating costs and expenses:

Depreciation and amortization   (8,155)
Corporate expenses (422)
Project development costs   (17)
Preopening costs (1,086)
Stock-based compensation   (655)

Operating income   594
Other expense:

Interest expense, net   (5,633)
(5,633)

Loss before income taxes (5,039)
Income tax provision   561

Net loss $ (5,600)
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(In thousands) Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
Contracted

Sports
Midwest & South West Wagering Total

Revenues
Casino $ 83,960 $ 22,398 $ — $ 106,358
Food and beverage   17,193   2,979   —   20,172
Hotel   4,132   2,462   —   6,594
Other operations,
including contracted sports wagering   4,803   346   5,143   10,292

$ 110,088 $ 28,185 $ 5,143 $ 143,416

Adjusted Segment EBITDA $ 24,958 $ 731 $ 4,512 $ 30,201
Other operating costs and expenses:

Depreciation and amortization   (20,951)
Corporate expenses (3,651)
Project development costs   (3)
Preopening costs (2,420)
Loss on disposal of assets (18)
Stock-based compensation   (1,449)

Operating income   1,709
Other expense:

Interest expense, net   (21,273)
(21,273)

Loss before income taxes (19,564)
Income tax provision   337

Net loss $ (19,901)
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(In thousands) Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Contracted

Sports
Midwest & South West Wagering Total

Revenues
Casino $ 67,133 $ 14,213 $ — $ 81,346
Food and beverage   14,791   1,542   —   16,333
Hotel   4,269   223   —   4,492
Other operations,
including contracted sports wagering   4,520   235   2,562   7,317

$ 90,713 $ 16,213 $ 2,562 $ 109,488

Adjusted Segment EBITDA $ 20,077 $ 234 $ 2,522 $ 22,833
Other operating costs and expenses:

Depreciation and amortization (14,014)
Corporate expenses (2,201)
Project development costs   (24)
Preopening costs (11,583)
Stock-based compensation   (1,403)

Operating loss   (6,392)
Other (expense) income:

Interest expense, net   (10,452)
Gain on insurance settlement   355

(10,097)
Loss before income taxes (16,489)

Income tax provision   526
Net loss $ (17,015)

(In thousands) June 30,  December 31, 
     2024      2023

Total Assets
Midwest & South $ 297,567 $ 298,072
West   359,933   372,875
Contracted Sports Wagering 1,477 977
Corporate and Other   14,941   16,533

$ 673,918 $ 688,457
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9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Grand Lodge Casino Lease Extension through December 2034

On July 1, 2024, the Company’s subsidiary, Gaming Entertainment (Nevada), LLC entered into a Seventh Amendment (the “Amendment”) with
the landlord to amend the terms of the Hyatt Lease. The Amendment extends the term of the casino operations lease by 10 years to December 31,
2034. The current annual rent of $2.00 million will increase nominally in 2025 to $2.01 million, followed by annual increases of 2% for the
remainder of this extended term. In the event of a significant renovation, the lessor may terminate the lease early with six months’ notice. Similar
to previous lease arrangements, the lessor also has an option to purchase the Company’s leasehold interest and related operating assets of the
Grand Lodge Casino at any time prior to lease expiration, subject to assumption of applicable liabilities. The option price is an amount equal to
Grand Lodge Casino’s positive working capital, plus its EBITDA for the 12-month period preceding the acquisition (or pro-rated if less than
12 months remain on the lease), plus the fair market value of Grand Lodge Casino’s personal property. Except as set forth in the Amendment, all
other terms of the Hyatt Lease remain in full force and effect.

Amended Sports Wagering Contracts and Settlements

On July 22, 2024, the Company’s two subsidiaries – Gaming Entertainment (Indiana) LLC and FHR-Colorado LLC – separately entered into
amended Sports Agreements with a contracted party to settle overdue payments owed to the Company totaling $2.9 million for approximately
$2.1 million, with such payment due to the Company in the third quarter of 2024. These amended Sports Agreements also included the reduction
of certain future annual amounts, which are now required to be paid in advance of each annual term. Except as set forth in the respective
amendments, all other terms of the Sports Agreements remain in full force and effect.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Please see “Forward-Looking Statements” for a discussion of the uncertainties, risks and assumptions that may
cause our actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with our historical financial statements and related notes thereto and the other disclosures contained elsewhere in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, and the audited consolidated financial statements and notes for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, which were
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 15, 2024. The results of
operations for the periods reflected herein are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for future periods. Full House
Resorts, Inc., together with its subsidiaries, may be referred to as “Full House,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” or “us,” except where stated or the
context otherwise indicates.

Executive Overview

Our primary business is the ownership and/or operation of casino and related hospitality and entertainment facilities, which includes
offering, among other amenities, casino gambling, hotel accommodations, dining, golf, RV camping, sports  betting, entertainment and retail
outlets. We currently operate seven casinos: six on real estate that we own or lease and one located within a hotel owned by a third party. In
February 2023, we opened our temporary American Place facility, which we are permitted to operate until August 2027; we have begun the
design work for the permanent gaming resort facility that we plan to build on adjoining land. In December 2023, we began the phased opening of
our newest property, Chamonix Casino Hotel (“Chamonix”), located adjacent to our existing Bronco Billy’s Casino in Cripple Creek, Colorado.
Additionally, we benefit from seven permitted sports wagering “skins” – three in Colorado, three in Indiana, and one in Illinois.

The following table identifies our segments, along with properties and their locations:

Segments and Properties  Locations
Midwest & South
American Place* Waukegan, IL (northern suburb of Chicago)
Silver Slipper Casino and Hotel   Hancock County, MS (near New Orleans)
Rising Star Casino Resort   Rising Sun, IN (near Cincinnati)
West
Bronco Billy’s Casino and Chamonix Casino Hotel*   Cripple Creek, CO (near Colorado Springs)
Grand Lodge Casino
(leased and part of the Hyatt Regency Lake Tahoe Resort, Spa and Casino)   Incline Village, NV

(North Shore of Lake Tahoe)
Stockman’s Casino   Fallon, NV (one hour east of Reno)
Contracted Sports Wagering
One active sports wagering website (“skins”), plus two others that are currently idle Colorado
One active sports wagering website (“skins”), plus two others that are currently idle Indiana
One active sports wagering website (“skin”), commenced in August 2023 Illinois
__________
* The temporary American Place facility and Chamonix opened on February 17 and December 27, 2023, respectively.
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Our financial results are dependent upon the number of patrons that we attract to our properties and the amounts those guests spend per
visit. While we provide credit at some of our casinos where permitted by gaming regulations, most of our revenues are cash-based, through
customers wagering with cash or paying for non-gaming services with cash or credit cards. Our revenues are primarily derived from slot
machines, but also include other gaming activities, including table games, keno and sports betting. In addition, we derive a significant amount of
revenue from our hotels and our food and beverage outlets. We also derive revenues from our golf course and ferry boat service at Rising Star,
our RV parks owned at Rising Star and managed at Silver Slipper, and retail outlets and entertainment. We often provide hotel rooms, food and
beverages, entertainment, ferry usage, and golf privileges to customers on a complimentary basis; the value of such services is included as
revenue in those categories, offset by contra-revenue in the casino revenue category. As a result, the casino revenues in our financial statements
reflect patron gaming wins and losses, reduced by the retail value of complimentary services, the value of free play provided to customers, the
value of points earned by casino customers that can be redeemed for services or free play, and adjustments for certain progressive jackpots
offered by the Company.

We set minimum and maximum betting limits for our slot machines and table games based on market conditions, customer demand and
other factors. Our gaming revenues are derived from a broad base of guests that includes both high- and low-stakes players. At Silver Slipper,
our sports book operations are in partnership with a company specializing in race and sports betting. At Rising Star, Bronco Billy’s, and
American Place, we have contracted with other companies to operate our online sports wagering skins under their own brands in exchange for a
percentage of revenues, as defined, subject to annual minimum amounts. Our operating results may also be affected by, among other things,
overall economic conditions affecting the disposable income of our guests, weather conditions affecting access to our properties, achieving and
maintaining cost efficiencies, taxation and other regulatory changes, and competitive factors, including but not limited to, additions and
improvements to the competitive supply of gaming facilities, as well as pandemics and similar widespread health emergencies.

We may experience significant fluctuations in our quarterly operating results due to seasonality, variations in gaming hold percentages,
and other factors. Consequently, our operating results for any quarter, especially contrasted with different seasonal quarters, are not necessarily
comparable. Results for any particular quarter or year may not be indicative of future periods’ results.

Our market environment is highly competitive and capital-intensive. Nevertheless, there are significant restrictions and barriers to entry
vis-à-vis opening new casinos in most of the markets in which we operate. We rely on the ability of our properties to generate operating cash
flow to pay interest, repay debt, and fund maintenance and certain growth-related capital expenditures. We continuously focus on improving the
operating margins of our existing properties through a combination of revenue growth and expense management. We also assess growth and
development opportunities, which include capital investments at our existing properties, the development of new properties, and the acquisition
of existing properties.

Recent Developments

Chamonix Casino Hotel. Designed to integrate with our adjacent Bronco Billy’s Casino, Chamonix is the only luxury casino hotel
located near the Colorado Springs metropolitan area. On December 27, 2023, we began its phased opening, starting with the casino, meeting
space, and approximately one-third of its 300  guestrooms. The remainder of Chamonix’s guestrooms came online gradually during the first
quarter. Our high-end steakhouse, 980 Prime, began welcoming its first guests in April 2024, while our rooftop pool and portions of our spa
opened in late-May 2024. During the second half of 2024, we expect to complete the opening of Chamonix’s spa and unveil its street-front
jewelry store.

American Place. In February 2023, we opened our temporary American Place facility in Waukegan, Illinois, which we are permitted to
operate until August 2027. American Place currently includes approximately 940 slot machines, 48  table games, a fine-dining restaurant, two
additional restaurants, a center bar and a sportsbook. We have begun design work for the permanent American Place facility, which is expected
to include a world-class casino, state-of-the-art sportsbook, premium boutique hotel comprised of 20  luxurious villas, and various food and
beverage outlets.
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Grand Lodge Casino Lease Extension through December 2034. In July 2024, our lease with the owner of the Hyatt Lake Tahoe to
operate the Grand Lodge Casino was amended to further extend the current term through December 31, 2034. The current annual rent of $2.0
million will increase nominally in 2025, followed by annual increases of 2% for the remainder of this extended term. In the event of a significant
renovation, the lessor may terminate the lease early with six months’ notice. Similar to previous lease arrangements, the lessor also has an option
to purchase our leasehold interest and related operating assets of the Grand Lodge Casino at any time prior to lease expiration, subject to
assumption of applicable liabilities. The option price is an amount equal to Grand Lodge Casino’s positive working capital, plus its earnings
before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) for the 12-month period preceding the acquisition (or pro-rated if less
than 12 months remain on the lease), plus the fair market value of Grand Lodge Casino’s personal property.

Contracted Sports Wagering Amendments and Settlements. In July 2024, we entered into amendments with a contracted party to settle
overdue payments owed to our subsidiaries in Colorado and Indiana totaling $2.9 million for approximately $2.1 million, with such payment due
to us in the third quarter of 2024. These amended sports wagering contracts also included the reduction of certain future annual amounts, which
are now required to be paid in advance of each annual term.

Key Performance Indicators

We use several key performance indicators to evaluate the operations of our properties. These key operating measures are presented as
supplemental disclosures because management uses these measures to better understand period-over-period fluctuations in our casino and hotel
operating revenues. These key performance indicators include the following and are disclosed in our discussions, where applicable, for certain
jurisdictions on segment performance:

Gaming revenue indicators:

Slot coin-in is the gross dollar amount wagered in slot machines and table game drop is the total amount of cash or credit exchanged
into chips at table games for use by our customers. Slot coin-in and table game drop are indicators of volume, and are monitored on a
consolidated basis in relation to slot and table game win. Such metrics can be influenced by marketing activity and are not necessarily indicative
of profitability trends.

Slot win is the difference between customer wagers and customer winnings on slot machines. Table game hold is the difference between
the amount of money or markers exchanged into chips and customer winnings paid. Slot win and table game hold percentages represent the
relationship between slot win and coin-in and table game win and drop. Both the slot win and table game hold percentages are monitored on a
consolidated basis in our evaluation of Company performance.

Room revenue indicators:

Hotel occupancy rate is an indicator of the utilization of our available rooms. Complimentary room sales, or the retail value of
accommodations gratuitously furnished to customers, are included in the calculation of the hotel occupancy rate.

Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Segment EBITDA, Adjusted Segment EBITDA Margin and Adjusted Property EBITDA:

Management uses Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of our performance. For a description of Adjusted EBITDA, see  “Non-GAAP
Financial Measure.”  We utilize Adjusted Segment EBITDA, a financial measure in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America (“GAAP”), as the measure of segment profitability in assessing performance and allocating resources at the
reportable segment level. For information regarding our operating segments, see Note 8. In addition, we use Adjusted Segment EBITDA Margin,
which is calculated by dividing Adjusted Segment EBITDA by the segment’s total revenues.

Same-store Adjusted Segment EBITDA is Adjusted Segment EBITDA further adjusted to exclude the Adjusted Property EBITDA of
properties that have not been in operation for a full year. Adjusted Property EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest and other non-
operating income (expense), taxes, depreciation and amortization, preopening expenses, certain impairment charges, asset write-offs, recoveries,
gain (loss) from asset disposals, project development and acquisition costs, non-cash share-based compensation expense, and corporate-related
costs and expenses that are not allocated to each property.
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Results of Operations

Consolidated operating results

The following tables summarize our consolidated operating results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30,  Increase / June 30,  Increase /

     2024      2023      (Decrease)      2024      2023      (Decrease)
Revenues $  73,492 $  59,382    23.8 % $  143,416 $  109,488    31.0 %  
Operating expenses    71,177    58,788    21.1 %    141,707    115,880    22.3 %  
Operating income (loss)    2,315    594    289.7 %    1,709    (6,392)  N.M.
Interest and other non-operating expenses, net    11,023    5,633    95.7 %    21,273    10,097    110.7 %  
Income tax (benefit) provision    (79)    561   N.M.    337    526    (35.9)%  
Net loss $  (8,629) $  (5,600)   54.1 % $  (19,901) $  (17,015)   17.0 %  

__________
N.M. Not meaningful.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30,  June 30, 

     2024      2023      Increase      2024      2023      Increase
Casino revenues

Slots $  46,097 $  38,022   21.2 % $  88,603 $  69,549   27.4 %  
Table games    8,498    7,247   17.3 %    17,541    11,599   51.2 %  
Other    90    90    — %    214    198   8.1 %  

   54,685    45,359   20.6 %    106,358    81,346   30.7 %  

Non-casino revenues, net              
Food and beverage    10,403    8,673   19.9 %    20,172    16,333   23.5 %  
Hotel    3,742    2,348   59.4 %    6,594    4,492   46.8 %  
Other    4,662    3,002   55.3 %    10,292    7,317   40.7 %  

   18,807    14,023   34.1 %    37,058    28,142   31.7 %  
Total revenues $  73,492 $  59,382   23.8 % $  143,416 $  109,488   31.0 %  
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Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
June 30,  Increase / June 30,  Increase /

(In thousands) 2024 2023 (Decrease)      2024 2023 (Decrease)

Slot coin-in $  775,776 $  643,965  20.5 % $  1,500,625 $  1,184,199  26.7 %
Slot win(1) $  59,269 $  46,889  26.4 % $  112,402 $  87,985  27.8 %
Slot hold percentage(2)  7.6 %  7.3 %  0.3 pts  7.5 %  7.4 %  0.1 pts
Table game drop $  47,811 $  39,335  21.5 % $  94,739 $  65,290  45.1 %
Table game win(1) $  8,593 $  7,273  18.1 % $  17,853 $  11,605  53.8 %
Table game hold percentage(2)  18.0 %  18.5 %  (0.5)pts  18.8 %  17.8 %  1.0 pts

__________
(1) Does not reflect reductions in casino revenues from “discretionary comps” (see Note  2 for more information on our customer loyalty

programs).
(2) The three-year averages for slot hold percentage and table game hold percentage were 7.4% and 18.2%, respectively. A significant portion

of our results in the recent and prospective quarters reflect the opening of two new casinos. Their win percentages may differ from historical
averages.

The following discussion is based on our condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024
and 2023.

Revenues. Consolidated total revenues increased by 23.8% (or $14.1 million) and 31.0% (or $33.9 million) for the respective three and
six months ended June  30,  2024, compared to the prior-year periods. This was primarily due to a full six  months of operations in 2024 at
American Place, which opened on February 17, 2023. Revenues during the 2024 periods also benefited from the phased opening of Chamonix,
which began on December 27, 2023. Additionally, revenues in 2024 reflect the contractual commencement of a sports wagering agreement in
Illinois on August 15, 2023. To a lesser extent, contracted sports wagering revenue benefited from an acceleration of deferred revenue for a
sports agreement that ceased operations in April 2024.

For more information, see “Supplemental Information – Same-store Operating Results.”

Operating Expenses. Consolidated operating expenses increased by 21.1% (or $12.4 million) and 22.3% (or $25.8 million) for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2024, compared to the prior-year periods. These increases were primarily due to the commencement of
operations at American Place in February 2023 and Chamonix in December 2023. For American Place, these expenses included a $3.9 million
increase in selling, general and administrative costs for the six months ended June 30, 2024, compared to the prior-year period. Depreciation and
amortization for American Place was $4.9 million and $10.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024. For Chamonix, these
expenses included $4.4  million in selling, general and administrative costs, and $4.1  million in depreciation and amortization for the three
months ended June  30,  2024. For the six months ended June  30,  2024 at Chamonix, those amounts were $8.2  million and $7.8  million,
respectively.

See further information within our reportable segments described below.
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Interest and Other Non-Operating Expenses.

Interest Expense

Interest expense, net, consists of the following:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(In thousands) June 30,  June 30, 

     2024      2023      2024      2023
Interest expense (excluding bond fee amortization and discounts/premiums) $  10,666 $  10,062 $  20,875 $  19,082
Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts/premiums    743    744    1,485    1,291
Capitalized interest    (199)    (4,097)    (561)    (7,569)
Interest income and other  (187)  (1,076)  (526)  (2,352)

$  11,023 $  5,633 $  21,273 $  10,452

The increases in net interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 were primarily due to reductions in capitalized
interest, as construction of the temporary American Place facility and Chamonix are largely complete. Additionally, as we invested cash into the
construction of both projects, our cash balances were lower during the 2024 period, resulting in reduced interest income. Further, we issued
$40.0 million of Additional Notes in February 2023, so the prior-year period reflects only a partial quarter of the related interest expense.

Other Non-Operating Expenses, Net

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, we had no other non-operating expense. The prior-year period had $355,000 of other
non-operating income, consisting primarily of insurance settlement proceeds from hurricane damage at Silver Slipper in 2020.

Income Tax Expense. We recognized an income tax benefit of $79,000 and an income tax provision of $0.3 million for the respective
three and six months ended June 30, 2024, which resulted in effective income tax rates of 0.9% and (1.7%), respectively. For the three and six
months ended June  30,  2023, we recognized respective income tax provisions of $0.6  million and $0.5  million, which resulted in effective
income tax rates of (11.1%) and (3.2%), respectively. The changes in the effective income tax rates were primarily due to the effects of tax
amortization on indefinite-lived intangibles in 2024, as well as certain permanent differences between tax and financial reporting purposes.

We do not expect to pay any federal income taxes or receive any federal tax refunds related to our 2024 results. As we have incurred
losses in prior periods, we anticipate any current-year taxable income will be offset by tax carryforwards from prior years. We continue to
evaluate, on a quarterly basis, the ability to realize our deferred tax assets and the need for a valuation allowance. The valuation allowance, and
the potential reversal of such allowance, have no bearing on the taxes actually paid by the Company.

Operating Results – Reportable Segments

We manage our casinos based primarily on geographic regions within the United States and type of income. For more information,
please refer to our earlier discussion within “Executive Overview” above.
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The following table presents detail by segment of our consolidated revenues and Adjusted EBITDA; see “Non-GAAP Financial
Measure” for additional information. Additionally, management uses Adjusted Segment EBITDA as the measure of segment profitability in
accordance with GAAP.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended
June 30,  Increase / June 30,  Increase /

     2024      2023      (Decrease)      2024      2023      (Decrease)
Revenues

Midwest & South   $  55,458 $  49,911    11.1 % $  110,088 $  90,713    21.4 %
West      15,151    8,089    87.3 %    28,185    16,213    73.8 %
Contracted Sports Wagering  2,883  1,382  108.6 %  5,143  2,562  100.7 %

  $  73,492 $  59,382    23.8 % $  143,416 $  109,488    31.0 %
Adjusted Segment EBITDA and
Adjusted EBITDA

Midwest & South   $  12,275 $  9,391    30.7 % $  24,958 $  20,077    24.3 %
West      865    177    388.7 %    731    234    212.4 %
Contracted Sports Wagering  2,577  1,361  89.3 %  4,512  2,522  78.9 %

Adjusted Segment EBITDA      15,717    10,929    43.8 %    30,201    22,833    32.3 %
Corporate      (1,576)    (422)   273.5 %    (3,651)    (2,201)   65.9 %

Adjusted EBITDA   $  14,141 $  10,507    34.6 % $  26,550 $  20,632    28.7 %

Adjusted Segment EBITDA Margin
Midwest & South  22.1 %  18.8 %  3.3  pts  22.7 %  22.1 %  0.6  pts
West  5.7 %  2.2 %  3.5  pts  2.6 %  1.4 %  1.2  pts
Contracted Sports Wagering  89.4 %  98.5 %  (9.1) pts  87.7 %  98.4 %  (10.7) pts
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Supplemental Information – Same-store Operating Results

The following table presents the financial results of our Midwest & South operations on a same-store basis for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 for revenues and Adjusted Segment EBITDA; see “Non-GAAP Financial Measure” for additional information.

Same-store operations exclude results of new and acquired operating segments that have not operated for longer than a year, starting
from the date of commencement or acquisition through the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, for Midwest & South, we have excluded the
results of American Place for periods subsequent to its commencement of operations.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended
June 30,  Increase / June 30,  Increase /

     2024      2023      (Decrease)      2024      2023      (Decrease)
Midwest & South same-store
total revenues(1) $  28,212 $  29,584  (4.6)% $  57,037 $  59,966  (4.9)%
American Place      27,246    20,327    34.0 %    53,051    30,747    72.5 %
Midwest & South total revenues   $  55,458 $  49,911    11.1 % $  110,088 $  90,713    21.4 %

Midwest & South same-store
Adjusted Segment EBITDA(1) $  4,690 $  5,258  (10.8)% $  9,991 $  12,372  (19.2)%
American Place      7,585    4,133    83.5 %    14,967    7,705    94.3 %
Midwest & South
Adjusted Segment EBITDA   $  12,275 $  9,391    30.7 % $  24,958 $  20,077    24.3 %

Midwest & South same-store
Adjusted Segment EBITDA margin(1)  16.6 %  17.8 %  (1.2) pts  17.5 %  20.6 %  (3.1) pts
American Place  27.8 %  20.3 %  7.5  pts  28.2 %  25.1 %  3.1  pts
Midwest & South
Adjusted Segment EBITDA margin  22.1 %  18.8 %  3.3  pts  22.7 %  22.1 %  0.6  pts

__________
(1) Same-store operations exclude results from American Place, which opened on February 17, 2023.
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The following table presents the financial results of our Contracted Sports Wagering operations on a same-store basis for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 for revenues and Adjusted Segment EBITDA; see “Non-GAAP Financial Measure” for additional
information.

Same-store operations exclude results of new and acquired operating segments that have not operated for longer than a year, starting
from the date of commencement or acquisition through the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, for Contracted Sports Wagering, we have
excluded the results in Illinois for periods subsequent to its contractual commencement of revenue payments.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended
June 30,  Increase / June 30,  Increase /

2024      2023      (Decrease)      2024      2023      (Decrease)
Contracted Sports Wagering same-store
total revenues(1) $  550 $  1,382  (60.2)% $  1,375 $  2,562  (46.3)%
Accelerated revenues due to
contract terminations(2)  893  — N.M.  893  — N.M.
Illinois      1,440    —   N.M.    2,875    —   N.M.
Contracted Sports Wagering
total revenues   $  2,883 $  1,382    108.6 % $  5,143 $  2,562    100.7 %

Contracted Sports Wagering same-store
Adjusted Segment EBITDA(1) $  281 $  1,361  (79.4)% $  827 $  2,522  (67.2)%
Accelerated revenues due to
contract terminations(2)  893  — N.M.  893  — N.M.
Illinois      1,403    —   N.M.    2,792    —   N.M.
Contracted Sports Wagering
Adjusted Segment EBITDA   $  2,577 $  1,361    89.3 % $  4,512 $  2,522    78.9 %

Contracted Sports Wagering same-store
Adjusted Segment EBITDA margin(1)  51.1 %  98.5 %  (47.4) pts  60.1 %  98.4 %  (38.3) pts
Illinois  97.4 %  — %  97.4  pts  97.1 %  — %  97.1  pts
Contracted Sports Wagering
Adjusted Segment EBITDA margin  89.4 %  98.5 %  (9.1) pts  87.7 %  98.4 %  (10.7) pts

__________
N.M. Not meaningful.
(1) Same-store operations exclude results from Illinois, which contractually commenced on August 15, 2023. For enhanced comparability, we

also excluded accelerated revenues due to contract terminations from same-store operations.
(2) For enhanced comparability, we also excluded accelerated revenues due to contract terminations from same-store operations. Such

adjustments reflect one sport skin that ceased operations in the second quarter of 2024.
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Midwest & South

Our Midwest & South segment includes Silver Slipper Casino and Hotel, Rising Star Casino Resort and American Place. Total revenues
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 increased by 11.1% (or $5.5 million) and 21.4% (or $19.4 million), respectively, due to the
continued ramp-up of operations at American Place. Additionally, the six-month period in 2023 reflects only a partial period of operations at
American Place, which opened in February 2023. Excluding results from American Place, same-store revenues declined by 4.6%
(or $1.4 million) and  4.9% (or $2.9 million) for the respective three and six months ended June 30, 2024, in part due to adverse winter weather
over several weekend periods during the first quarter of 2024, followed by severe storms and tornados in the second quarter.

Reflecting the February 2023 opening of American Place, casino revenue increased by 12.5% (or $4.8  million) and 25.1% (or
$16.8 million) for the respective three and six months ended June 30, 2024. For the three months ended June 30, 2024, slot revenue for the
segment increased by 11.3% (or  $3.6  million), and table games revenue increased by 18.3% (or  $1.2  million). For the six months ended
June  30,  2024, slot revenue for the segment increased by 19.7% (or  $11.3  million), and table games revenue increased by 56.8%
(or  $5.5  million). Excluding results from American Place, same-store casino revenue declined by 6.4% (or $1.2  million) and 8.4% (or
$3.2 million) for the respective three and six months ended June 30, 2024, primarily due to lower slot and table games volumes at Silver Slipper
and Rising Star. In addition to the adverse weather noted above, Rising Star continues to compete with a relatively new racetrack casino that
opened in September 2022 in Northern Kentucky.

Non-casino revenue increased by 6.7% (or $0.8 million) and 10.8% (or $2.5 million) for the respective three and six months ended June
30, 2024, largely due to increases in food and beverage revenue. Food and beverage revenue rose 10.0% (or $0.8  million) and 16.2% (or
$2.4 million) for the respective current-year periods, reflecting increased operating hours and the February 2024 opening of a new restaurant at
American Place.

Adjusted Segment EBITDA increased by 30.7% (or $2.9 million) and 24.3% (or $4.9 million) for the respective three and six months
ended June  30,  2024, reflecting improved efficiencies at American Place versus its first year of operations. Adjusted Property EBITDA at
American Place was $7.6 million and $15.0 million, respectively, for the 2024 periods. Such amounts reflect growth of 83.5% and 94.3% when
compared to Adjusted Property EBITDA of $4.1 million and $7.7 million for the respective 2023 periods. Same-store Adjusted Segment
EBITDA declined from $5.3 million to $4.7 million (or 10.8%), and from $12.4 million to $10.0 million (or 19.2%), for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2024, primarily due to overall declines in casino revenues and adverse weather during the first half of 2024 at Silver Slipper.

West

Our West segment includes Grand Lodge Casino (“Grand Lodge”), Stockman’s Casino, Bronco Billy’s Casino, and Chamonix Casino
Hotel, which began its phased opening on December 27, 2023. The market in Cripple Creek, Colorado, is seasonal, favoring the summer months.
Our Nevada operations have historically been seasonal, with the summer months accounting for a disproportionate share of annual revenues.
Additionally, snowfall levels during the winter months can often affect operations, as Grand Lodge is located near several major ski resorts.
While Grand Lodge typically benefits from a “good” snow year, resulting in extended periods of operation at the nearby ski areas, excessive
snow levels can also result in challenging driving conditions or the closure of roads leading to the property.

Total revenues increased by 87.3% (or $7.1  million) and 73.8% (or $12.0  million) for the respective three and six  months ended
June 30, 2024, primarily due to the phased opening of Chamonix, which was designed to integrate with existing operations at Bronco Billy’s.

Casino revenue increased by 64.4% (or $4.6 million) and 57.6% (or $8.2 million) for the respective three and six months ended June
30, 2024, reflecting contributions from Chamonix and improved operating conditions at Bronco Billy’s. Slot revenue accounted for most of the
increases in the respective 2024 periods. It increased by 71.8% (or $4.5 million) and 62.8% (or $7.8 million), despite decreases in slot volumes
at Grand Lodge and Stockman’s for the current-year periods. Table games revenue rose by $0.1 million (or 9.6%) and $0.4 million (or 22.1%)
for the respective three and six months ended June 30, 2024, attributable mostly to our Colorado operations.
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Non-casino revenue increased by 247.8% (or $2.5  million) and 189.3% (or $3.8 million) for the respective three and six months ended
June 30, 2024. Food and beverage revenues increased by $0.9 million and $1.4 million for the respective 2024 periods, and hotel revenues rose
by $1.5 million and $2.2 million, respectively. These improvements came from Chamonix, which gradually opened its approximately 300-room
hotel throughout the first  quarter of 2024. Guest volume increases from Chamonix’s new hotel also benefited food and beverage venues
throughout Chamonix and Bronco Billy’s.

Adjusted Segment EBITDA improved by 388.7% (or $0.7 million) and 212.4% (or $0.5 million) for the respective three and six months
ended June 30, 2024. Current-period results reflect the phased opening of Chamonix Casino Hotel, which is currently operating less efficiently
than expected in future quarters. Elevated expenses include the training of new employees and additional marketing costs expected to benefit
future operations, as well as the cost of operating many amenities at the new resort while continuing to complete construction. Results in the
current-year period also reflect significant snowfall over several weekends – when guest traffic at our casinos is typically strongest – in the first
quarter, and the loss of electrical power to the entire city of Cripple Creek for three days.

Contracted Sports Wagering

The Contracted Sports Wagering segment consists of our on-site and online sports wagering skins in Colorado, Indiana and Illinois.

For the three months ended June  30,  2024, revenues grew 108.6%, from $1.4  million in the prior-year period to $2.9  million, and
Adjusted Segment EBITDA rose 89.3%, from $1.4 million to $2.6 million. Similarly, for the six months ended June 30, 2024, revenues grew
100.7%, from $2.6  million in the prior-year period to $5.1  million, and Adjusted Segment EBITDA rose 78.9%, from $2.5  million to $
4.5 million. These results reflect the launch of our permitted Illinois sports skin in August 2023. Under the Illinois sports wagering agreement,
we receive a percentage of online revenues (as defined), subject to an annualized minimum of $5 million, with minimal expected expenses. We
also receive a percentage of on-site sports revenue, as defined. This agreement contributed $1.4 million in revenues, as well as Adjusted Segment
EBITDA, during the three months ended June  30,  2024. For the six months ended June  30,  2024, such amounts were $2.9  million and
$2.8 million, respectively.

The segment’s results also reflect the commencement of a sports agreement in Colorado, which contributed to our results from March
2023 until operations were ceased in April 2024. Additionally, provisions for credit losses on sports wagering receivables of $0.3 million and
$0.5  million were applied to the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively. There were no such provisions for the prior-year
periods.

We currently have two idle sports skins each in Indiana and Colorado. We continue to evaluate whether to operate them ourselves or to
have other third-party operators utilize them. However, there is no certainty that we will be able to enter into agreements with other third-party
operators or successfully operate the skins ourselves.

Corporate

Corporate expenses for the respective three and six months ended June 30, 2024 rose 273.5% (or $1.2 million) and 65.9% (or $1.5
million), primarily due to increases in accrued bonus compensation, as compared to the prior-year periods. Corporate expenses were $1.6 million
and $0.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, corporate
expenses were $3.7 million and $2.2 million, respectively.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measure

“Adjusted EBITDA” is earnings before interest and other non-operating income (expense), taxes, depreciation and amortization,
preopening expenses, certain impairment charges, asset write-offs, recoveries, gain (loss) from asset disposals, project development and
acquisition costs, and non-cash share-based compensation expense. Adjusted EBITDA information is presented solely as supplemental
disclosure to measures reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) because
management believes this measure is (i)  a widely used measure of operating performance in the gaming and hospitality industries and (ii)  a
principal basis for valuation of gaming and hospitality companies. In addition, a version of Adjusted EBITDA (known as Consolidated Cash
Flow) is utilized in the covenants within the Credit Facility, although not necessarily defined in the same way as above. Adjusted EBITDA is not,
however, a measure of financial performance or liquidity under GAAP. Accordingly, this measure should be considered supplemental and not a
substitute for net income (loss) or cash flows as an indicator of the Company’s operating performance or liquidity.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net loss and operating income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30,  June 30, 

2024      2023      2024      2023
Net loss $  (8,629) $  (5,600) $  (19,901) $  (17,015)

Income tax (benefit) provision  (79)  561  337  526
Interest expense, net  11,023  5,633  21,273  10,452
Gain on insurance settlement  —  —  —  (355)

Operating income (loss)  2,315  594  1,709  (6,392)
Project development costs  3  17  3  24
Preopening costs  757  1,086  2,420  11,583
Depreciation and amortization  10,326  8,155  20,951  14,014
Loss on disposal of assets  —  —  18  —
Stock-based compensation  740  655  1,449  1,403

Adjusted EBITDA $  14,141 $  10,507 $  26,550 $  20,632
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The following tables present reconciliations of operating income (loss) to Adjusted Segment EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
(In thousands)

Adjusted
Segment

Operating Depreciation Project Stock- EBITDA and
Income and Development Preopening Based Adjusted

     (Loss)      Amortization      Costs      Costs      Compensation      EBITDA
Reporting segments                       

Midwest & South $  6,233 $  6,042 $  — $  — $  — $  12,275
West    (4,148)    4,256    —    757    —    865
Contracted Sports Wagering  2,577  —  —  —  —  2,577

   4,662    10,298    —    757    —    15,717
Other operations                              

Corporate    (2,347)    28    3    —    740    (1,576)
$  2,315 $  10,326 $  3 $  757 $  740 $  14,141

Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
(In thousands)

Adjusted
Segment

Operating Depreciation Project Stock- EBITDA and
Income and Development Preopening Based Adjusted
(Loss) Amortization Costs Costs Compensation   EBITDA

Reporting segments                       
Midwest & South $  1,830 $  7,556 $  — $  5 $  — $  9,391
West    (1,473)    569    —    1,081    —    177
Contracted Sports Wagering  1,361  —  —  —  —  1,361

   1,718    8,125    —    1,086    —    10,929
Other operations                              

Corporate    (1,124)    30    17    —    655    (422)
$  594 $  8,155 $  17 $  1,086 $  655 $  10,507

Operating expenses deducted to arrive at operating income (loss) in the above tables for the three-month periods ended June 30, 2024
and 2023 included facility rents related to: (i) Midwest & South of $1.4 million during each of 2024 and 2023, and (ii) West of $0.6 million in
2024 and $0.7 million in 2023.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
(In thousands)

Adjusted
Segment

Operating Depreciation Loss on Project Stock- EBITDA and
Income and Disposal Development Preopening Based Adjusted

     (Loss)      Amortization      of Assets      Costs      Costs      Compensation      EBITDA
Reporting segments                           

Midwest & South $  12,043 $  12,778 $  18 $  — $  119 $  — $  24,958
West    (9,685)    8,115    —    —    2,301    —    731
Contracted Sports
Wagering  4,512  —  —  —  —  —  4,512

   6,870    20,893    18    —    2,420    —    30,201
Other operations                                   

Corporate    (5,161)    58    —    3    —    1,449    (3,651)
$  1,709 $  20,951 $  18 $  3 $  2,420 $  1,449 $  26,550

Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
(In thousands)

Adjusted
Segment

Operating Depreciation Project Stock- EBITDA and
Income and Development Preopening Based Adjusted

     (Loss)      Amortization      Costs      Costs      Compensation      EBITDA
Reporting segments                       

Midwest & South $  (2,836) $  12,812 $  — $  10,101 $  — $  20,077
West    (2,389)    1,141    —    1,482    —    234
Contracted Sports Wagering  2,522  —  —  —  —  2,522

   (2,703)    13,953    —    11,583    —    22,833
Other operations                              

Corporate    (3,689)    61    24    —    1,403    (2,201)
$  (6,392) $  14,014 $  24 $  11,583 $  1,403 $  20,632

Operating expenses deducted to arrive at operating income (loss) in the above tables for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2024 and
2023 included facility rents related to: (i) Midwest & South of $2.8 million in 2024 and $2.3 million in 2023, and (ii) West of $1.3 million in
2024 and $1.5 million in 2023.



Table of Contents

39

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

As of June 30, 2024, we had $44.7 million of cash and equivalents, including $13.6 million of restricted cash dedicated to Chamonix’s
construction. Chamonix began opening in phases beginning in December 2023, and is expected to complete construction in the third quarter of
2024. We estimate that between $10 million and $15 million of cash is used in our current day-to-day operations, including on-site cash in our
slot machines, change and redemption kiosks, and cages. We believe that current cash balances, together with the available borrowing capacity
under our revolving credit facility and cash flows from operating activities, will be sufficient to meet our liquidity and capital resource needs for
the next 12 months of operations. Over the last several years, we invested in two large construction projects that are now open to the public:
American Place, which opened in February 2023, and Chamonix, as noted above.

Cash flows – operating activities. On a consolidated basis, cash provided by operations during the six months ended June 30, 2024
was $5.7 million, compared to cash provided by operations of $1.7 million in the prior-year period. Trends in our operating cash flows tend to
follow trends in operating income, excluding non-cash charges, but are also affected by changes in working capital. During the current period,
we benefited from a full six months of operations at American Place, which opened in February 2023.

Cash flows – investing activities. On a consolidated basis, cash used in investing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2024
was $33.9  million, primarily related to Chamonix. Cash used in investing activities during the prior-year period was $139.2  million, which
included a gaming license payment of $50.3 million required to open American Place, as well as capital expenditures to construct Chamonix and
American Place.

Cash flows – financing activities. On a consolidated basis, cash used in financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2024
was $0.9 million, compared to cash provided by financing activities of $59.9 million in the prior-year period. During 2023, net borrowings from
the Credit Facility totaled $27.0 million, and we received $40.0 million of gross proceeds from the issuance of our Additional Notes to open
American Place.

Other Factors Affecting Liquidity

We have significant outstanding debt and contractual obligations, in addition to planned capital expenditures related to the completion
of Chamonix. Our principal debt matures in February 2028. Certain planned capital expenditures designed to grow the Company, such as the
permanent American Place facility and the potential future expansion of Silver Slipper, may require additional financing and/or temporarily
reduce the Company’s ability to repay debt.

Our operations are subject to financial, economic, competitive, regulatory and other factors, many of which are beyond our control.
Such future developments are highly uncertain and cannot be accurately predicted at this time.

Debt

Long-term Debt. At June 30, 2024, we had $450.0 million of principal indebtedness outstanding under the Notes and $27.0 million
outstanding under the Credit Facility. We also owe $2.0 million related to our finance lease of a hotel at Rising Star. With the exception of the
Credit Facility, all of our debt is at fixed interest rates. See Note 4 for details on our debt obligations.
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Other

Capital Investments. In addition to normal maintenance capital expenditures, we expect to make significant capital investments related
to the completion of Chamonix and, in the future, the permanent American Place facility.

Chamonix. We began the phased opening of Chamonix on December 27, 2023. To fund Chamonix’s construction, we issued our 2028
Notes and placed a portion of such proceeds into a restricted cash account dedicated to the completion of Chamonix’s construction (see Note 4).
As of June 30, 2024, the balance of such restricted cash account was approximately $13.6 million, which we expect to invest in the second half
of 2024. In April 2024, we opened Chamonix’s high-end steakhouse, followed by its rooftop pool and portions of its spa in May 2024. During
the third quarter of 2024, we expect to complete construction of the spa and a street-front retail store.

American Place. We were selected by the IGB to develop and operate American Place in Waukegan, Illinois. While the larger
permanent facility is under development, we are operating the temporary American Place facility, which opened in February 2023. As previously
noted, we have been approved to operate the temporary American Place facility until August  2027, thus delaying any expected meaningful
capital expenditures for the permanent American Place facility until 2026 and 2027. During the second half of 2024, we may invest modest
additional amounts, primarily related to construction planning for the permanent American Place facility. While we expect to internally generate
a portion of the needed funds to complete American Place, we will likely need additional financing. Lawsuits filed by an unsuccessful bidder for
the Waukegan gaming license – and against parties unrelated to us – may impact our ability to arrange such financing and, therefore, delay the
start of meaningful construction.

Other Capital Expenditures. Additionally, we may fund various other capital expenditure projects, depending on our financial
resources. Our capital expenditures may fluctuate due to decisions regarding strategic capital investments in new or existing facilities, and the
timing of capital investments to maintain the quality of our properties. No assurance can be given that any of our planned capital expenditure
projects will be completed or that any completed projects will be successful. Our annual capital expenditures typically include some number of
new slot machines and related equipment; to some extent, we can coordinate such purchases to match our resources.

We evaluate projects based on a number of factors, including profitability forecasts, length of the development period, the regulatory
and political environment, and the ability to secure the funding necessary to complete the development or acquisition, among other
considerations. No assurance can be given that any additional projects will be pursued or completed or that any completed projects will be
successful.

Hyatt Owner’s Option to Purchase our Leasehold Interest and Related Assets. Our lease with the owner of the Hyatt Lake Tahoe to
operate the Grand Lodge Casino has been extended several times and currently expires on December 31, 2034. In the event of a significant
renovation, the lessor may terminate the lease early with six months’ notice. Similar to previous lease arrangements, the lessor also has the
ability to purchase our leasehold interest and related casino operating assets at any time prior to lease expiration. See Note  3 for more
information.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K, that have, or are reasonably likely to
have, a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity,
capital expenditures, or capital resources that are material to investors.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies

We describe our critical accounting estimates and policies in Note 2, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. We also discuss
our critical accounting estimates and policies in Item  7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. There has been no significant change in our estimation methods since the
end of 2023.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) for which the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor.
These forward-looking statements can be identified by use of terms such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “plans,” “intends,”
“objectives,” “goals,” “aims,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “future,” “possible,” “seeks,” “may,” “could,” “should,” “will,” “might,” “likely,”
“enable,” or similar words or expressions, as well as statements containing phrases such as “in our view,” “we cannot assure you,” “although no
assurance can be given,” or “there is no way to anticipate with certainty.” Examples of forward-looking statements include, among others,
statements we make regarding our plans, beliefs or expectations regarding our growth strategies; our expected construction budgets, estimated
commencement and completion dates, expected amenities, and our expected operational performance for Chamonix and American Place,
including its permanent facility; our expectations regarding the legal proceedings related to the process whereby we were granted the gaming
license for American Place; our expectations regarding our ability to generate operating cash flow and to obtain debt financing on reasonable
terms and conditions for the construction of the permanent American Place facility; our investments in capital improvements and other projects,
including the amounts of such investments, the timing of commencement or completion of such capital improvements and projects, and the
resulting impact on our financial results; our sports wagering contracts with third-party providers, including the expected revenues and expenses
and our expectations regarding the operation and usage of our available idle sports wagering contracts, our ability to replace any terminated
sports wagering contracts or our ability to operate sports wagering contracts ourselves; adequacy of our financial resources to fund operating
requirements and planned capital expenditures and to meet our debt and contractual obligations; expected sources of revenue; anticipated sources
of funds; anticipated or potential legislative actions; beliefs in connection with our marketing efforts; factors that affect the financial performance
of our properties; adequacy of our insurance; competitive outlook; outcome of legal and litigation matters; impact of recently issued accounting
standards; and estimates regarding certain accounting and tax matters, among others.

Forward-looking statements are neither historical facts nor assurances of future performance. Instead, they are based only on our current
beliefs, expectations and assumptions regarding the future of our business, future plans and strategies, projections, anticipated events and trends,
the economy and other future conditions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks
and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict and many of which are outside of our control. Our actual results and financial condition
may differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Therefore, you should not rely on any of these forward-looking
statements. Important factors that could cause our actual results and financial condition to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-
looking statements include, among others, those risks discussed in Part I, Item 1A—Risk Factors and throughout Part II, Item 7—Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, and in
Part II, Item 1A—Risk Factors and elsewhere of this Form 10-Q. In addition, you should consult other disclosures made by us (such as in our
other filings with the SEC or in company press releases) for other factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from those projected
by us. You should read this Form 10-Q, and the documents that we reference in this Form 10-Q and have filed with the SEC, and our Annual
Report on Form  10-K for the year ended December  31,  2023, with the understanding that our actual future results, levels of activity,
performance, and events and circumstances may be materially different from what we expect.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements as a result of future developments, events or
conditions, except as required by law. New risks emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to predict all such risk factors, nor can we
assess the impact of all such risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to
differ significantly from those forecast in any forward-looking statements. You should also be aware that while we communicate from time to
time with securities analysts, we do not disclose to them any material non-public information, internal forecasts or other confidential business
information. Therefore, you should not assume that we agree with any statement or report issued by any analyst, irrespective of the content of the
statement or report. To the extent that reports issued by securities analysts contain projections, forecasts or opinions, those reports are not our
responsibility and are not endorsed by us.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Not applicable.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures — As of June 30, 2024, we completed an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Exchange Act Rule  13a-15(e)  and 15d-15(e)). Based upon that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of June 30, 2024, our disclosure controls and procedures
are effective at a reasonable assurance level in timely alerting them to material information relating to us, which is required to be included in our
periodic SEC filings.

We have established controls and procedures designed at the reasonable assurance level to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to management, including the
principal executive officer and the principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  — There have been no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 5. Other Information

Insider Trading Arrangements — On June 7, 2024, Lewis Fanger, our Chief Financial Officer, adopted a trading arrangement for the
sale of securities of our common stock (a “Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan”) that is intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Exchange
Act Rule 10b5-1(c). Mr.  Fanger’s Rule  10b5-1  Trading Plan, which has a term until February 3, 2025, provides for the sale of up to
250,000 shares of common stock pursuant to one or more market or limit orders. This trading plan relates to certain options that are nearing their
10-year expiration date.

Additionally, on June 11, 2024, Daniel Lee, our Chief Executive Officer, also adopted a Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan that is intended to
satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Exchange Act Rule 10b5-1(c). Mr.  Lee’s Rule  10b5-1  Trading Plan, which has a term until
November 29, 2024, provides for the sale of up to 943,834 shares of common stock pursuant to one or more market or limit orders. This trading
plan relates to certain options that are nearing their 10-year expiration date, with any stock sales intended to satisfy costs associated with the
option exercise, including income taxes.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal and administrative proceedings relating to personal injuries, employment matters, commercial
transactions and other matters arising in the normal course of business. We do not believe that the final outcome of these matters will have a
material adverse effect on our condensed consolidated financial position or results of operations. We maintain what we believe is adequate
insurance coverage to further mitigate the risks of such proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There were no material changes from the risk factors set forth under Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” section of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description

10.1
Seventh Amendment to Casino Operations Lease dated July 1, 2024 by and between Incline Hotel LLC, as landlord, and
Gaming Entertainment (Nevada) LLC, as tenant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (SEC File No. 1-32583) filed on July 3, 2024).

31.1* Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1** Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2** Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS* Inline XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL with applicable taxonomy extension information contained in
Exhibits 101)

*  Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/891482/000089148224000027/fll-20240701xex10d1.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/fullhouseresorts/sec/0000891482-24-000034/for_pdf/fll-20240630xex31d1.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/fullhouseresorts/sec/0000891482-24-000034/for_pdf/fll-20240630xex31d2.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/fullhouseresorts/sec/0000891482-24-000034/for_pdf/fll-20240630xex32d1.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/fullhouseresorts/sec/0000891482-24-000034/for_pdf/fll-20240630xex32d2.htm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FULL HOUSE RESORTS, INC.

Date: August 6, 2024 By:  /s/ DANIEL R. LEE
Daniel R. Lee
Chief Executive Officer
(on behalf of the Registrant and as principal executive officer)

Date: August 6, 2024 By: /s/ LEWIS A. FANGER
Lewis A. Fanger
Chief Financial Officer
(on behalf of the Registrant and as principal financial officer and as
principal accounting officer)



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A)/15(D)-14(A) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Daniel R. Lee, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Full House Resorts, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2024 By: /s/ DANIEL R. LEE
Daniel R. Lee
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A)/15(D)-14(A) AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Lewis A. Fanger, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Full House Resorts, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2024 By: /s/ LEWIS A. FANGER
Lewis A. Fanger
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Full House Resorts, Inc. for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Daniel R. Lee, Chief Executive Officer of Full House Resorts,
Inc., hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
Full House Resorts, Inc.

Date: August 6, 2024 By: /s/ DANIEL R. LEE
Daniel R. Lee
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Full House Resorts, Inc. for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Lewis A. Fanger, Chief Financial Officer of Full House Resorts,
Inc., hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
Full House Resorts, Inc.

Date: August 6, 2024 By: /s/ LEWIS A. FANGER
Lewis A. Fanger
Chief Financial Officer


